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Operations
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1593 Four Mike Creek 
Road

P.O. Box 190
Virgil, Ontario
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Report: OPS-19-019 Committee Date:

Due in Council: September 16, 2019

Report To: Operations Advisory Committee
Subject: Ministry of Transportation Request to Rename Glendale Avenue East

1. RECOMMENDATION
It is respectfully recommended:

1.1 That Council approve the renaming of Glendale Avenue East as requested by 
the Ministry of Transportation.

1.2 That Council refer the choice of an alternate name for Glendale Avenue East to 
the Community and Development Services department as per the Town's Street 
Naming Policy.

2. PURPOSE / PROPOSAL

To secure Council's approval to change the name of Glendale Avenue East to an as yet 
to be determined alternative in order to improve wayfinding through the pending 
QEW/Glendale interchange redesign.

3. BACKGROUND

The QEW/Glendale interchange redesign is a joint project between the Ministry of 
Transportation (Ontario) and the Regional Municipality of Niagara.  Several 
presentations have been made to Council regarding the project, which has now reached 
the RFP for design stage.  

In an update meeting with Town staff on September 9, 2019 the MTO reported on a 
recently completed signage review and initiative to simplify wayfinding through the 
interchange, undertaken  as part of the preparatory work for issuing the design RFP.  
This review noted that there are 3 roads in close proximity to each other all bearing the 
name "Glendale" - Glendale Avenue, Glendale Avenue North and Glendale Avenue 
East.  Glendale Avenue and Glendale Avenue North are contiguous roadways, however 
Glendale Avenue East intersects Glendale Avenue and does not appear to drivers to be 
a logical, related roadway.  This proliferation of "Glendale" names will likely lead to 
confusion when the intersection is reconfigured.
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Accordingly, the Ministry of Transportation has requested that the Niagara-on-the-Lake 
Council approve a resolution to rename Glendale Avenue East.  The MTO apologises 
for the short timeline, but requests support for this initiative before the design RFP is 
issued within the current month.  There is no requirement to chose an alternate street 
name at this time - a new name will not be required until the start of construction, 
estimated to be approximately a year from now.

4. DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS

Staff research did not reveal any significant historical or community association with the 
naming of Glendale Avenue East, which is a vestige of the pre-QEW route of Glendale 
Avenue.  This roadway is a low-volume cul-de-sac which experiences brief a.m. and 
p.m. traffic surges associated with the two properties fronting the road (Niagara College 
Glendale and the former Foster Wheeler building, now Niagara EMS and other offices).  
An overview of the subject roadway is attached as Appendix A for your information.

To reiterate, MTO is only requesting a resolution of Council to approve a name change 
for Glendale Avenue East at this time, with the new name as yet to be determined.  The 
Town has a comprehensive street naming policy, adopted as by-law 4909-16 attached 
for your information.  Although the policy refers to street names in new developments, 
the same principles can be applied to renaming an existing roadway.

Upon receiving Council's support for the requested street name change, this issue 
should be referred to the Community and Development Services department for 
selection of a new street name as per the terms of the Town's policy.  A report to  
Council for revision of the NOTL street name list (last amended in 2013) will also be 
required.

5. STRATEGIC PLAN

N/A

6. OPTIONS 

N/A

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications for the Town are minimal and confined to the staff time 
necessary to prepare the associated reports and amend the Town's GIS mapping and 
street names list to reflect the new street name.  The cost of signage production and 
installation will be borne by the joint project partners, the Regional Municipality of 
Niagara and the MTO.

8. COMMUNICATIONS

The Town Clerk to provide the Ministry of Transportation with a copy of Council's 
resolution to approve a street name change for Glendale Avenue East.
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Advance communication regarding the pending name change will also be required for 
Canada Post and the two fronting properties.

9. CONCLUSION

Although Niagara-on-the-Lake is not a managing partner in the reconstruction of the 
Glendale/QEW interchange, it is important that we help provide the best possible 
wayfinding direction to the 3 million plus visitors travelling to the Town every year, the 
majority of whom transit the interchange.  The renaming of Glendale Avenue East to 
something less confusing will support this goal.

Respectfully submitted,

Marci Weston Mike Komljenovic
Engineering Technologist Supervisor of Engineering

Jeffrey Vyse, C.S.T. Sheldon Randall
Director of Operations (I) Chief Administrative Officer (I)
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